
1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019  

 
Vice Chairman Luke called the February 19, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (February 8, 2019), and published 
in a legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of February 
11, 2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on February 8, 2019 copies of 
such notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance 
with Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
The County Clerk stated that the Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center, 
posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
supervisors and media via email on February 18, 2019.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agenda, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Eleven County 
Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused were Supervisors 
Johansen, Bonneprise, Masters and Nelson.  Supervisor Nelson joined meeting at 2:08 p.m. 
bringing the total to twelve Supervisors present.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Vice Chair Luke called to the floor for a motion to suspend the Rules of Order to allow for 
approval of the amended agenda and to debate and act upon all resolutions noticed.  
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to suspend rules to allow for approval of amended agenda and to 
debate and act upon all resolutions noticed on the agenda. 
Vice Chair Luke called for a roll call vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous roll call 
vote (11 voting for and 4 Supervisors absent). 



2 
 

 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda as 
published. Motion (Demulling/Jepsen) to adopt the Agenda as Amended. Vice Chairman Luke 
called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the Amended Agenda. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(O’Connell/Larsen) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Vice Chairman Luke called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda: Minutes from January 22, 2019 special session 
adopted as published and Resolution No. 12‐19: Resolution to Approve Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment for the Town of St Croix Falls adopted.  
 
Time was given for public comment. Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report, no report was received. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Interim Administrator Fuge for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received updates regarding the status of open positions including the Criminal 
Justice Collaborating Council Coordinator, Information Technology Director, and Land Use 
Division Director. The County Board received budgetary updates on various departments. The 
financial forecast report on the Lime Quarry is pending from Clifton‐Larsen. A safety analysis 
report on the Recycling Center is pending. The Fairgrounds needs assessment is underway. The 
Fairgrounds Management agreement is in process. Upcoming meetings include Municipal 
Roundtable meeting at the Government Center on February 21 at 1:00 p.m. and Department of 
Transportation meeting in Osceola regarding the detour study for Highway 8 on March 7, 2019 
at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Interim Administrator Fuge announced the appointment of Bernie Desmarais to the Board of 
Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to confirm said appointment.  
Motion (Jepsen/Larsen) to confirm the appointments of Bernie Desmarais to the Board of 
Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on 
the motion to confirm said appointment. Motion to confirm appointments Bernie Desmarais to 
the Board of Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Scott Teigen, Kwik Trip Vice President and Dan Tronrud, owner 
of Osceola Auto Body to provide information to the County Board regarding the Kwik Trip and 
Osceola Auto Body Proposal to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands located in the Village of Osceola.  
 
 



3 
 

The Board received updates from Corporation Counsel Malone regarding pending claims from 
Public Administration Associates, Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail and Peter Henry v. 
Polk County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Nelson/Olson) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
noticed on the amended agenda.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to convene in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 

** Closed Session 2:47 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 

Vice Chairman Luke asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Chris Nelson, Michael Prichard, Jim Edgell, Kim 
O’Connell, Larry Jepsen, Vice Chairman Jay Luke, Joe Demulling, Michael Larsen, and Russ 
Arcand.  Also present were, Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator; Sharon Jorgenson, County 
Clerk; Malia Malone, Corporation Counsel; Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner; and Tim 
Anderson, County Planner.  
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 3:48 p.m.   
Vice Chairman Luke called for a recess at 3:48 p.m. Vice Chairman Luke declared the Board back 
in legislative session at 3:58 p.m.  
 
Upon reconvening in open session, Vice Chairman Luke made the following announcement to 
the press regarding action in closed session:   
 
That no action would be taken in regard to the pending claims and litigation items noticed on 
the agenda and the same will be addressed at the March County Board meeting if necessary. 
Vice Chairman Luke also announced that the Board discussed the Kwik Trip sale and Resolution 
No. 13‐19: Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 75‐18 Authorizing the Submission of the 
Proposed Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County 
Segment) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Resolution No. 13‐19:  Resolution Rescinding Resolution 
No. 75‐18 Authorizing the Submission of the Proposed Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes 
Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources.  
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19.  
 
Motion (Nelson/Route) to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote 
(Absent were Supervisors Johansen, Masters, and Bonneprise).    Resolution No. 13‐19:  
Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 75‐18: Authorizing the Submission of the Proposed 
Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) to the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources adopted. 



4 
 

 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of 
Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands Located in Village of Osceola 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Supervisor O’Connell to provide information regarding the 
resolution. Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Larsen) to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Larsen) to amend Resolution No. 04‐19 as provided in Amendment 1 and 
Amendment 2, below as follows:  
Amendment 1:  
At Line 29, insert the following:  
“WHEREAS, at the Environmental Services Committee meeting of February 6, 2019, Kwik Trip 
presented and outlined a revised offer to purchase the subject properties for a purchase price 
of $355,000 and revised terms and conditions; and  
WHEREAS, the Environmental Services Committee has recommended to the County Board to 
accept the revised offer of Kwik Trip and to amend this resolution to incorporate the revised 
offer to purchase; and  
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, Kwik Trip forwarded to the County its revised offer to 
purchase, a copy of which is marked as the “Kwik Trip Offer 02‐07‐2019”, and is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein.”  
Amendment 2:  
To further amend Resolution No. 4‐19, at Lines 30‐33, to read as follows:  
“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Polk County Board of Supervisors confirms the 
acceptance of the offer of Kwik Trip, identified and attached here to as the “Kwik Trip Offer 02‐
07‐2019”, to purchase for a sales price of Three Hundred Fifty‐Five Thousand ($355,000) 
Dollars, the two adjacent properties along Ridge Road in the village of Osceola and having the 
legal descriptions, as follows:”  
And to renumber Resolution No. 4, accordingly.  
********  
Fiscal impact Note: The County took the parcels in 2010 through tax foreclosure. The total taxes 
that were written off, which include special assessments and charges, amounted to 
$351,231.43 for both parcels, $175,861 on Parcel#165‐00612; and $175,369 on Parcel#165‐
00613. Acceptance of the Kwik Trip Offer 02‐07‐2019 would restore wholly the County moneys 
disbursed to taxation districts for the delinquency. For these reasons, the transaction has a 
neutral financial impact.  
 
Legal Impact Note: Passage of Resolution No. 4‐19, as amended, would result in binding the 
County to the terms and conditions of the revised Kwik Trip offer incorporated into this 
resolution. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said amendments to Resolution No. 04‐19.  
Motion to amend Resolution No. 04‐19 as stated carried by unanimous voice vote.  



5 
 

 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19 as amended.  
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19 as amended carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent 
Lands Located in Village of Osceola adopted as amended.  
 
Corporation Counsel Malone was excused from the County Board session at 4:04 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director 
Jerrick to provide information to the Board regarding incoming Administrator Osborne and the 
process of developing Performance Management Process and Practices. Board received 
information regarding scheduling individual meetings with new County Administrator Osborne 
and the need for the Board/Executive Committee to develop recommendations and goals with 
the new Administrator to use for the 90 day performance evaluation.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Larsen/Demulling) to adjourn. Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Vice Chairman Luke declared meeting adjourned 4:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

                                         POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

*AMENDED* Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
1Matters Added, Struck or Revised in Amended Agenda, Issued February 18, 2019:  
Items 5, 6, 9, 10, 13, 14, and 16.  
 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. 1   Motion to Suspend Rules, Article 3. 1. a., and 2, to allow for Approval of Amended 

Agenda and to Debate and Act upon All Resolutions Noticed (Two-Thirds Vote Needed) 
6. 1   Approval of Agenda Confirming to Amended Notice of Meeting/Amended Agenda 
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from January 22, 2019 County 
Board Special Meeting 

b. Resolution No. 12-19: Resolution to Approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment for the 
Town of St Croix Falls 

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. 1   County Board Chairperson’s Report 
10. 1   Administrator’s Message – Information and Discussion 

a. Preliminary Report on 2018 Year End Financials and Highway Facility Project Fund 
b. Status Report on Business Analysis for Lime Quarry 
c. 2019 Budget Book 
d. Administrator Transition Planning    

11. Confirmation of Appointments 
a. Confirmation of Appointment of Bernie Desmarais to Board of Adjustment for term 

ending May 31, 2021 
12. **Presentation – Kwik Trip and Osceola Auto Body Proposal to Purchase Tax Delinquent 

Lands Located in Village of Osceola –Scott Tiegen/Kwik Trip and Dan Tronrud/Osceola 
Auto Body 
 

13. 1 **County Claims – Discussion and Action 
a. *Pending Claim of PAA for Compensatory Damages Related to Recruitment 
b. *Pending Claim of Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail Related to the Master 

Trail Plan of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail 
c. *Pending Litigation of Peter Henry v. Polk County Board of Supervisors, Polk 

County Case No. 2019CV41 
 
 

1



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

14. 1**Resolution No.13-19: Resolution to Rescind Resolution No. 75-18: Authorizing the 
Submission of the Proposed Master Plans for the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail 
Trail (Polk County Segment) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources – 
Discussion and Direct Action 

 

** CLOSED SESSION**  

The County Board may convene in closed sessions for purposes and subject matters, 
as follows: 

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute § 19.85(1)(g), the Board may convene in closed 
session for the purpose of conferring with legal counsel for Polk County who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the Board with 
respect to pending claims and litigation concerning the pending claim of PAA, the 
pending claim of the Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail; the pending 
litigation of Peter Henry v. Polk County Board of Supervisors, Polk County Case No. 
2019CV41; and anticipated claims regarding the Stower Seven Lakes State Trail, as 
noticed in Items 13. a.- c.; and 14. 
 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85 (1)(e), the County Board may convene 
in closed session for the purpose of deliberating on a negotiation strategy with respect 
to the Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands Located in Village of 
Osceola, because bargaining reasons exist in considering and responding to said offer 
to purchase such tax delinquent lands. 
 

Following the closed session the Board will convene in open session to make an 
announcement on matters acted upon in closed session and to take up, consider and act upon 
in open session those subject matters noticed for consideration or action on this meeting 
notice for open session or closed session. 

15. Resolutions and Ordinances Returning from Committee for Discussion and Action: 
a. Report of Environmental Services Committee: 

- Resolution No. 04-19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase   Tax 
Delinquent Lands Located in Village of Osceola  
(Discussion and Action on Revised Offer) 

 
16. 1Presentation and Discussion on Transition, Onboarding and Setting Performance 

Expectations for incoming Administrator – Andrea Jerrick  Deputy County 
Administrator/Employee Relations Director 

17. Supervisors Announcements  
18. Adjourn 

 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or 
participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so 
all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



1 
 

                                         POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Approval of Agenda 
6. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from January 22, 2019 County 
Board Special Meeting 

b. Resolution No. 12-19: Resolution to Approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment for 
the Town of St Croix Falls 

7. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
8. Confirmation of Appointments 

a. Confirmation of Appointment of Bernie Desmarais to Board of Adjustment for 
term ending May 31, 2021 

9. Presentation – Kwik Trip and Osceola Auto Body Proposal to Purchase Tax Delinquent 
Lands Located in Village of Osceola –Scott Tiegen/Kwik Trip and Dan 
Tronrud/Osceola Auto Body 
 

10. Resolutions and Ordinances Returning from Committee for Discussion and Action: 

a. Report of Environmental Services Committee: 
 
- Resolution No. 04-19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase   

Tax Delinquent Lands Located in Village of Osceola  
(Discussion and Action on Revised Offer) 

 
Closed Session:  Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85 (1)(e), the County Board 
may convene in closed session for the purpose of deliberating on a negotiation strategy 
with respect to the noticed offer to purchase because bargaining reasons exist in 
considering and responding to said offer to purchase such tax delinquent lands.  
 
Following the closed session the County Board will convene in open session to make 
an announcement on matters acted upon in closed session and to take up, consider and 
act upon in open session those subject matters noticed for consideration or action on 
this meeting notice for open session or closed session 
 
 

23



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

 
 

11. Presentation and Discussion on Performance Management Process and Practices – 
Andrea Jerrick  Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director 
 

12. Supervisors Announcements  
13. Adjourn 

 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or 
participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so 
all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 

 

24



1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Special Session of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, January 22, 2019  

 
Vice Chairman Luke called the January 22, 2019 special session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, and published/posted on the County website in accordance with 
Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 on January 16, 2019. In addition, the Office of the County 
Clerk distributed on January 16, 2019 copies of such notice of meeting and proposed 
resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance with Article 3, Section 2 of the 
County Board Rules of Order.   
The County Clerk stated that the Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center, 
posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
supervisors and media via email on January 16, 2019.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agenda, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Thirteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused were 
Supervisors Johansen and Bonneprise. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda as 
published. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to adopt the Amended Agenda. 
Vice Chairman Luke declared that the following items would be struck from the agenda:  13.a. 
Ordinance 01‐19: To Repeal and Recreate Article 3.1.a. of the Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Rules of Order Ordinance‐ Concerning the Sponsorship and Processing of Proposed Resolutions 
and Ordinances which will be referred to the Executive Committee,  13. d. Ordinance 06‐19: 
Amendments to Subdivision Ordinance, 13. e. Ordinance No. 07‐19: Amendments to 

25



2 
 

Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance, 13. f. Ordinance No. 08‐19: Amendment to Shoreland 
Protection Zoning Ordinance and 15.a. Resolution No. 76‐18: Resolution to Rescind Moratorium 
on the Administration of County Rural Road/Address Numbering System and to Call for the 
Vote on Proposed Ordinance No. 48‐18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road 
Numbering Ordinance would be struck from the agenda as Resolution No. 09‐19: Resolution to 
Rescind Moratorium on the Administration of County Rural Road/Address Numbering System 
replaces said Resolution No. 76‐18. Chairman Luke also declared that Agenda Item 15.d. 
Resolution No. 92‐18: Resolution to Develop Revision to Gandy Dancer Trail Polk County 
Segment Master Plan would be moved on agenda and addressed as Item 10.c. 
Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to adopt the Amended Agenda with said changes. Vice Chairman 
Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the Amended Agenda striking said 
Ordinances and Resolution No. 76‐18 as stated and changing order of agenda. Motion carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/Jepsen) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Vice Chairman Luke called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda: Minutes from December 18, 2018 special session 
and regular meeting adopted as published.  
 
Time was given for public comment. Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
County Board received introduction to the new Veteran’s Service Officer, Andrew Butzler. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Interim Administrator Fuge to provide the Administrator’s 
Report to the County Board. Condition of County is strong. Personnel is most valuable resource 
of the County. Under development are positions of Land Use Director and IT Director. Wellness 
fair will be held on January 23, 2019. Finance:  closing books for 2019, audit pending. 2019 
Budget Book is under production. County received award for budget information and 
documentation. Public Health Readiness Consortium was awarded a grant of $172,553.00 for 
“Enhancing Public Health Preparedness: The Opioid Epidemic”.   
Budget development process will begin for 2020. Lime Quarry, Nursing Home, and Fairgrounds 
will have financial/business analysis completed on each by Clifton Larson Allen. Fairground 
proposals to be considered by Executive Committee.  
 
Interim Administrator Fuge announced the appointment of Tonya Eichelt to Community 
Services Director and provided details regarding the final selection process for the Community 
Services Director position. Interim Administrator Fuge announced the appointment of Linda 
Heimstead to the Library Planning Committee. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to confirm said appointments.  
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to confirm the appointments of Tonya Eichelt to Community 
Services Director and Linda Heimstead to the Library Planning Committee. Vice Chairman Luke 
called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm said appointments. Motion to confirm 

26



3 
 

appointments of Tonya Eichelt to Community Services Director and Linda Heimstead to Library 
Planning Committee carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Resolution No. 92‐18:  Resolution to Develop Revision to Gandy Dancer Trail Polk County 
Segment Master Plan. Vice Chairman Luke called upon Supervisor Nelson to provide 
information regarding the resolution to the County Board. Vice Chairman Luke called upon 
Corporation Counsel Malone provide a legal opinion regarding the resolution to the County 
Board. Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to action on Resolution No. 92‐18.  
 
Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to adopt Resolution No. 92‐18 (which will go back to Environmental 
Services Committee for further action regarding revisions to Gandy Dancer Trail Polk County 
Segment Master Plan).  Vice Chairman Luke called for a roll call vote on said motion. Motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 92‐18 carried by roll call vote with 9 voting yes, 4 voting no and 2 absent 
(Voting no: Supervisors Prichard, O’Connell, Luke, and Larsen, Absent were Supervisors 
Johansen and Bonneprise).    Resolution No. 92‐18:  Resolution to Develop Revision to Gandy 
Dancer Trail Polk County Segment Master Plan adopted. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a 5 minute recess at 3:04 p.m. Vice Chairman Luke called the 
County Board back into legislative session at 3:14 p.m.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Masters/Olson) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
noticed on the amended agenda.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to convene in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Chris Nelson, Brian Masters, Michael Prichard, Jim 
Edgell, Kim O’Connell, Larry Jepsen, Vice Chairman Jay Luke, Joe Demulling, Michael Larsen, and 
Russ Arcand.  Also present were, Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk, Malia Malone, Corporation 
Counsel; Andrea Jerrick, Employee Relations Director/Deputy Administrator; and Maggie 
Wickre, Finance.  
 

** Closed Session 3:14 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 4:57 p.m.   
 
Vice Chairman Luke declared the Board back in legislative session at 4:58 p.m.  
 
Upon reconvening in open session, Vice Chairman Luke made the following announcement to 
the press regarding action in closed session:   
 
Confirmation of employment as County Administrator was made with Nicholas Osborne. 
 

27



4 
 

Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor proposed ordinances and resolutions for direction action 
(require two‐thirds vote to place on the floor): 
 

Ordinance No. 02‐19: Amendment to the Polk County ATV and UTV Route Ordinance to Provide 
for Year Round Travel on Designated Routes. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Ordinance No. 02‐19: Amendment to the Polk County 
ATV and UTV Route Ordinance to Provide for Year Round Travel on Designated Routes. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to action on Ordinance No. 02‐19. 
 
 Motion (Jepsen/Arcand) to move Ordinance No. 02‐19 to the floor for debate and direct 
action. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Supervisor Route to provide information regarding the 
resolution. Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 02‐19. 
 
Motion (Route/Arcand) to adopt Ordinance No. 02‐19. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 02‐19. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 02‐19 
carried by majority voice vote. Ordinance No. 02‐19: Amendment to the Polk County ATV and 
UTV Route Ordinance to Provide for Year Round Travel on Designated Routes adopted.  
 
Ordinance No. 03‐19: Ordinance Requiring the Use of Parcel Identification Number on 
Documents Submitted for Recording Pertaining to Real Estate.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Ordinance No. 03‐19: Ordinance Requiring the Use of 
Parcel Identification Number on Documents Submitted for Recording Pertaining to Real Estate.  
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to action on Ordinance No. 03‐19. 
 
 Motion (O’Connell/Masters) to move Ordinance No. 03‐19 to the floor for debate and direct 
action. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Larsen) to adopt Ordinance No. 03‐19. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 03‐19. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 03‐19 
carried by unanimous voice vote. Ordinance No. 03‐19: Ordinance Requiring the Use of Parcel 
Identification Number on Documents Submitted for Recording Pertaining to Real Estate 
adopted.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor receipt of proposed ordinances and resolutions for 
referral to committee: 
 
Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent 
Lands Located in Village of Osceola.  Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor, Resolution No. 04‐

28



5 
 

19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands Located in 
Village of Osceola. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to action or referral to committee on 
Resolution No. 04‐19. 
Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to refer Resolution No. 04‐19 to the Environmental Services 
Committee and General Government Committee for consideration and recommendation. Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent 
Lands Located in Village of Osceola referred to Environmental Services Committee and General 
Government Committee for consideration and recommendation. 
 
Resolution No. 10‐19:  Resolution Concerning the Request of the Village of Luck for Cost‐
Sharing on Project to Replace South Shore Drive Culvert and Big Butternut Lake Dam.  Vice 
Chairman Luke called to the floor, Resolution No. 10‐19:  Resolution Concerning the Request of 
the Village of Luck for Cost‐Sharing on Project to Replace South Shore Drive Culvert and Big 
Butternut Lake Dam. Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion in regard to action or referral to 
committee on Resolution No. 10‐19. 
 
Motion (Route/Arcand) to refer Resolution No. 10‐19 to the General Government Committee 
for consideration. Point of Order by Supervisor Arcand that no debate is allowed on Resolution 
No. 10‐19 since the motion is to refer resolution to General Government Committee.  Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion carried by majority voice vote.  
 
Resolution No. 10‐19:  Resolution Concerning the Request of the Village of Luck for Cost‐
Sharing on Project to Replace South Shore Drive Culvert and Big Butternut Lake Dam referred to 
General Government Committee for consideration and recommendation. 
 
Resolution No. 09‐19:  Resolution to Rescind Moratorium on the Administration of County 
Rural Road/Address Numbering System. 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor, Resolution No. 09‐19:  Resolution to Rescind 
Moratorium on the Administration of County Rural Road/Address Numbering System. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to in regard to action on Resolution No. 09‐19.  
 
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to move Resolution No. 09‐19 to the floor for debate and direct 
action. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to move Resolution No. 09‐19 
to the floor.  
Motion carried by majority voice vote with some dissenting (unable to verify two‐thirds vote). 
Chairman O’Connell called for a roll call vote on said motion. Motion to bring Resolution No. 
09‐19 to the floor carried by roll call vote with 11 voting for and 2 voting against (Voting 
against:  Supervisors Olson and O’Connell, Absent were Supervisors Johansen and Bonneprise).  
 
 
 

29



6 
 

Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 09‐19.  
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to adopt Resolution No. 09‐19. Vice Chairman Luke called upon 
Interim Administrator Fuge to provide information regarding the resolution to the County 
Board. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion to adopt Resolution No. 09‐
19 carried by majority voice vote.  Resolution No. 09‐19:  Resolution to Rescind Moratorium on 
the Administration of County Rural Road/Address Numbering System adopted.  
 
Resolution No. 97‐18:  Resolution to Recommend the Removal of the Current Members of the 
Polk County Board of Adjustment by the Office of the County Administrator.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 97‐18. 
Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to adopt Resolution No. 97‐18.  
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Interim Administrator Fuge to provide information regarding 
the resolution and the current status of the Board of Adjustment Committee.  
 
Supervisor Masters called for the question.  
Motion (Nelson/no second) to amend Resolution No. 97‐18 to change wording on line 22 of 
resolution. Corporation Counsel Malone provided legal opinion regarding the motion to amend 
line 22. Motion died for lack of a second. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on motion to adopt Resolution No. 97‐18, then called 
for a roll call vote. Motion carried by roll call vote with 9 voting for and 4 voting against, and 2 
absent.  (Voting against Supervisor Route, Prichard, Jepsen, and Larsen. Absent were 
Supervisors Johansen and Bonneprise).  
 
Resolution No. 97‐18:  Resolution to Recommend the Removal of the Current Members of the 
Polk County Board of Adjustment by the Office of the County Administrator adopted.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Masters/Larsen) to adjourn. Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Vice Chairman Luke declared meeting adjourned 5:41 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 

30



31



32



33



34



35



Polk County Board of Supervisors - February 19, 2019     
Information Memo and Committee Report 

 
Subject:  Resolution No. 04-19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax 
Delinquent Lands Located in Village of Osceola - (Discussion and Action on Revised Offer) 
  
Introduced/First Reading:   January 22, 2019 
Second Reading:  February 19, 2019 
 
Overview: 
 
This memo updates the status of this matter as previously discussed in the Informational 
Memo circulated in the meeting packet for January 22, 2019.  
 
Resolution No. 04-19 returns to the County Board on second reading for discussion and action.  
 
At the January 22, 2019 County Board meeting, Resolution No. 04 
The Environmental Services Committee has recommended to the County Board to amend 
Resolution No. 04-19 to reflect and incorporate the most recent offer of KwikTrip to purchase 
the tax delinquent properties for a purchase price of $355,000 on terms specified.  A copy of 
the offer to purchase, “KwikTrip Offer 02-07-2019”, is attached.  The committee recommends 
passage of Resolution No. 19 as so amended.  The committee recommends that the County 
Board accept the offer of KwikTrip as submitted.   The language recommended by the 
committee to amend Resolution No. 4-19 is found on page 2 of this memo.  
 
Consideration and action on the KwikTrip Offer 02-07-2019 is time sensitive. The offer has a 
sunset of February 22, 2019.   KwikTrip is seeking to complete the transaction by June 30, 
2019.   
 
The two properties, identified as 165-00612-0000 and 165-00613-0000, are adjacent parcels 
consisting of approximately 78 acres of development property south of the Village and off of 
State Road 35/Cascade Street.    
 
The County has attempted unsuccessfully to sell the parcels at public auctions held in July and 
October 2018.  In July, the public auction offered each parcel separately at a minimum bids of 
$170, 000 and $175,000, respectively.  At the October 2018 sale, the County offered the two 
parcels together at a minimum bid of $250,000.   Neither public sale received a minimum bid.  
 
Given that the County has already advertised and attempted to sell the properties as public 
sale, the County Board has the discretion to authorize a direct sale of one or both of the 
properties.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



****************** 
Proposed Amendment to Resolution No. 4-19 
On Recommendation of the Environmental  
 
Motion ______________, Second__________________, to amend Resolution No. 4-19 as provided in 
Amendment 1 and Amendment 2, below as follows: 
 
Amendment 1: 
 
At Line 29, insert the follows:  
 
“WHEREAS, at the Environmental Services Committee meeting of February 6, 2019, KwikTrip 
presented and outlined a revised offer to purchase the subject properties for a purchase price 
of $355,000 and revised terms and conditions; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Services Committee has recommended to the County Board to 
accept the revised offer of KwikTrip and to amend this resolution to incorporate the revised 
offer to purchase; and  
 
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, KwikTrip forwarded to the County its revised offer to 
purchase, a copy of which is marked as the “KwikTrip Offer 02-07-2019”, and is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein.” 
 
Amendment 2:   
 
To further amend Resolution No. 4-19, at Lines 30-33, to read as follows: 
 
“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Polk County Board of Supervisors confirms 
the acceptance of the offer of KwikTrip, identified and attached here to as the “KwikTrip 
Offer 02-07-2019”, to purchase for a sales price of Two Three Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand 
($250,000 355,000) Dollars, the two adjacent properties along Ridge Road in the village of 
Osceola and having the legal descriptions, as follows:” 
 
And to renumber Resolution No. 4, accordingly.  
 
******** 
Fiscal impact Note:   The County took the parcels in 2010 through tax foreclosure. The total 
taxes that were written off, which include special assessments and charges, amounted to 
$351,231.43 for both parcels, $175,861 on Parcel#165-00612; and $175,369 on Parcel#165-
00613.  Acceptance of the KwikTrip Offer 02-07-2019 would restore wholly the County moneys 
disbursed to taxation districts for the delinquency.   For these reasons, the transaction has a 
neutral financial impact.  
 
Legal Impact Note:  Passage of Resolution No. 4-19, as amended,  would result in binding the 
County to the terms and conditions of the revised KwikTrip offer incorporated into this 
resolution.   

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



1

Jeff Fuge

From: Katie Klug <KKlug@kwiktrip.com>
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 2:01 PM
To: Jeff Fuge
Subject: FW: Kwik Trip Offer to Purchase 78 acres and agreement to sell 25 acres to Osceola Auto 

Body
Attachments: Osceola subdivided.pdf; Osceola site plan.pdf

 

From: Scott Teigen  
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 1:42 PM 
To: Jeff@co.polk.wi.us; brad.olson@co.polk.wi.us; doug.route@co.polk.wi.us; dean.johansen@co.polk.wi.us; 
christopher.nelson@co.polk.wi.us; tracy.lablanc@co.polk.wi.us; muskymasters@yahoo.com; 
Prichard.Mike@dorseyalumni.com; kim.oconnell@co.polk.wi.us; larry.jepsen@yahoo.com; jkluke@amerytel.net; 
rusty@cltcomm.net; jdemulling@centurttel.net 
Cc: Dan@osceolaautobody.com; Julie Long <JLong@kwiktrip.com>; Katie Klug <KKlug@kwiktrip.com>; Tom Reinhart 
<TReinhart@kwiktrip.com> 
Subject: Kwik Trip Offer to Purchase 78 acres and agreement to sell 25 acres to Osceola Auto Body 
 
Dear Jeff and Polk County Board of Supervisors, 
 
Below is  our letter of understanding with Dan Tronrud (Osceola Auto Body) for us to work together to acquire this 78 
acres from Polk County and he will end up with 25 acres to accommodate his future expansion and growth. Also 
attached above is a sketch showing approximately the anticipated subdivision of this larger parcel at this point.  Kwik 
Trip will acquire the entire property and then sell him the 25 acres he wants and needs.  Dan also indicated to me that 
we needed to increase the Offer price to Polk County from $250,000 to $325,000 which we are doing. This truly is a win‐
win‐win situation for the community, for Dan and for Kwik Trip. 
 
Jeff you will receive our revised Offer today as we discussed yesterday.  Thank you for sending me the contact info for 
your Board of Supervisors.  Hopefully we can keep this on the February agenda. I have also attached a copy of our 
preliminary site plan for this property showing building with attached car wash, separate diesel canopy, truck parking 
and our typical gas canopy. 
 
We look forward to seeing you all soon and greatly appreciate your support of this Sale.  Thanks again!!! 
 
Scott 
 
Scott Teigen‐Vice President 
Kwik Trip, Inc. 
700 Wolske Bay Road, Suite 280 
Menomonie, WI 54751 
(715) 235‐6626 
(715) 556‐4444  Cell 
(715) 235‐7808  (FAX) 
steigen@kwiktrip.com 
 
 
KWIK TRIP INC. MISSION STATEMENT 
"To serve our customers and community more efficiently than anyone else by treating our customers, co‐workers and 
suppliers as we, personally, would like to be treated and to make a difference in someone's life." 
 

64



2

 

From: Scott Teigen  
Sent: Friday, February 1, 2019 12:32 PM 
To: Dan@osceolaautobody.com 
Cc: Julie Long <JLong@kwiktrip.com>; Katie Klug <KKlug@kwiktrip.com>; Tom Reinhart <TReinhart@kwiktrip.com> 
Subject: Letter of Understanding/Intent to sell 25 acres 
 
Dan, 
 
It was great to meet you yesterday and I look forward to working together with you in our acquiring this 78 acres in 
Osceola and then selling you 25 acres adjacent and west of your existing property. This entire transaction is for the 
mutual benefit of the community of Osceola, you and your business and Kwik Trip. You want and need additional land to 
expand and Kwik Trip would like to build a Convenience store with fuel and car wash. We both will create additional tax 
base and create jobs in the community.  A win‐win‐win!! 
 
As we discussed and agreed our plan to accomplish these goals are as follows: 
 

1) Kwik Trip will increase its Offer to Purchase (the entire 78 acres) with Polk County from $250,000 to $325,000. 
2) Provided Kwik Trip is successful in the acquisition of the 78 acres, Kwik Trip will sell you 25 acres located directly 

west of your property with the north property line being set at a point 30 feet north of your existing auto body 
building (a rough sketch of the property is attached). The cost of the property will be at the same cost per acre 
that Kwik Trip is paying plus a shared cost of the surveying, rezoning and subdivision costs. I verified with the City 
today that the property is currently zoned R‐3 but Kari did not foresee any issues with a rezoning for our 
particular uses. 

3) Kwik Trip will handle the survey, rezoning and subdivision process in conjunction with our Convenience store with 
fuel, truck parking and car wash approval process. This process will take several months. 

4) We will enter into official purchase agreement with you upon Polk County accepting our Offer to Purchase. 
5) There will be use restrictions on the property to protect your business and ours. 

 
We look forward to working with you through this entire transaction‐‐‐‐as we stated yesterday when we shook hands on 
the deal!!  Please contact me at your earliest convenience with any questions or concerns. 
 
Scott 
 
 
Scott Teigen‐Vice President 
Kwik Trip, Inc. 
700 Wolske Bay Road, Suite 280 
Menomonie, WI 54751 
(715) 235‐6626 
(715) 556‐4444  Cell 
(715) 235‐7808  (FAX) 
steigen@kwiktrip.com 
 
 
KWIK TRIP INC. MISSION STATEMENT 
"To serve our customers and community more efficiently than anyone else by treating our customers, co‐workers and 
suppliers as we, personally, would like to be treated and to make a difference in someone's life." 
 
 

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74


	County Board Agenda 2-19-19 Amended
	Res 13-19 Rescind Res 75-18
	Rules of Order Ordinance Nov 2018 update
	County Board 2-19-19 Packet
	County Board Agenda 2-19-19
	Minutes 1-22-19 Spec session
	Res 12-19 Zoning Ord Amendment for Town of SCF
	Staff Report Kwik Trip offer
	Res 04-19 Kwik Trip Offer to Purchase Feb Bd
	Res 04-19 Kwik Trip Offer to Purch OLD
	Res 04-19  Revised Offer to Purchase - Osceola
	2-6-19 ES Agenda Amended Pkt
	Agenda-ES-Amended 02-06-2019
	Kwik Trip Offer to purchase 2-1-19
	KwikTrip Offer_OsceolaTxDeq02012019_0319
	KwikTrip Offer_OsceolaTxDeq02012019
	Osceola site plan
	Osceola subdivided

	KwikTrip Offer_OsceolaTxDeq02012019EmailStiegen

	2-6-19 ES Agenda Packet
	Agenda-ES-02-06-2019
	ESC Minutes 01-23-2019
	2-6-19 mtg  Polk 2018 Claim Summary
	Sheet1

	Stower Trail Master Plan 1-2019.doc Rev 01292018 (003)
	Copy of Fee for BOA Hearing
	Res 12-19 Approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Town of SCF
	Work plan 2019 ES


	Feb 22 BD Stower Info




